
Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda  
August 8, 2024 – 6:00 PM 

Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Council Chambers 
6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Roll Call
B. Invocation – Council Member Jane Welch
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Council Member Monte Long
D. Adoption of Agenda

2. Consent Agenda
A. Resolution 2024-035 – Financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 – PRELIMINARY AND

UNAUDITED (Attachment #1)

B. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – July 3, 2024 (Attachment #2)

C. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – July 11, 2024 (Attachment #3)

3. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
A. Presentations

i. Sheriff’s Office monthly report
ii. Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 – “Certificate of

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting” (Attachment #4)

4. Public Forum
A. Residents should register with the Town Clerk and limit their comments to three (3) minutes.
B. Written comments are also available.

5. Public Hearings
A. Rezoning – L-107 – Shallowford Road Driving Range

i. Staff presentation
ii. Public Hearing
iii. Council discussion
iv. Council consideration – Ordinance 2024-002– Change zoning from Forsyth County RS-40 to Town

of Lewisville HB-C – Shallowford Road Driving Range
B. Annexation – Shallowford Road Driving Range

i. Staff presentation
ii. Public Hearing
iii. Council discussion
iv. Council consideration – Ordinance 2024-003 – Extend the Town of Lewisville corporate limits to

include Shallowford Driving Range

6. New Business
A. Ordinance 2024-025 – Facility use exemption policy (Attachment #5)

B. Resolution 2024-036 – Traffic mitigation policy (Attachment #6)

C. Ordinance 2024-012 – AMENDED – Change zoning from Forsyth County RS-30 to Town of
Lewisville RS-30 – 2065 Glenn Ferry Court  (Attachment #7)

D. Ordinance 2024-013 - AMENDED – Extend the Town of Lewisville corporate limits to include 2065
Glenn Ferry Court (Attachment #8)



E. Ordinance 2024-026 – Amending the Lewisville Beautification Committee Charter (Attachment #9)

F. Ordinance 2024-027 – Amending the Environmental Conservation Sustainability Committee
Charter (Attachment #10)

G. Ordinance 2024-028 – Amending the Public Art Advisory Committee Charter (Attachment #11)

H. Ordinance 2024-029 – Amending the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Development Committee
Charter (Attachment #12)

I. Ordinance 2024-030 – Dissolving the Public Safety Advisory Committee (Attachment #13)

J. Resolution 2024-037 – Facility Use Exemption – Forsyth County Fire Historical Society, Inc.
(Attachment #14)

7. Administrative Reports
A. Upcoming events and closings

i. CPR Class – August 10, 8 AM-12 PM, MAWCC
ii. Bourbon Revival Band – August 31, 7-9 PM

iii. Town offices closed – September 2

8. For the Good of the Order
A. Public Comments

i. Residents should limit their comments to three (3) minutes.
ii. Written comment forms are also available.

B. Council Comments

9. Adjournment



DRAFT

Attachment #1



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



Lewisville Town Council 
Briefing and Action Meeting Minutes 

July 3, 2024 – 6:00 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:00 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Melissa Hunt, and Council Members Ivan Huffman and Monte Long.  Also attending were
Town Manager Stacy Tolbert, Town Clerk Dora Moore, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Public Works
Director Jon Hanna, and Town Attorney Elliot Fus.  Council Members Julia Puckett, Ken Sadler and
Jane Welch were absent.

B. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Huffman moved to approve the agenda.  The motion was
seconded by Council Member Long and approved unanimously.

2. Items Requiring Council Direction
A. Traffic Mitigation Policy – Mr. Hanna shared proposed changes to the traffic mitigation policy

including cost sharing, mitigation options, and forming a Public Safety Technical Review
Committee to include the town manager, public works director, fire departments, and community
policing. Council consensus was given to bring the final proposal to Council in August. (Powerpoint 

is included with the minutes.)

B. Non-profit exempt facility users
i. Updated application – Mrs. Moore shared proposed changes to the facility use exemption

request application. Council consensus was given to bring the final proposal to Council in
August.

ii. User list review – Mrs. Tolbert reviewed the current user exemption list with Council with
recommendations on who should remain on the list, be removed, or have limited use. Council
consensus was given to bring the final proposal to Council in August.

iii. Town-affiliated organizations – Mrs. Tolbert requested language be included in the ordinance
whereby staff could waive usage fees for Town-affiliated organizations such as North Carolina
League of Municipalities, Piedmont Triad Regional Council, Winston-Salem/Forsyth County
Planning Board, and other member organizations. Council consensus was given to bring the
final proposal to Council in August.

3. Items Requiring Action at Briefing
A. Resolution 2024-033 - Piedmont Natural Gas easement for Great Wagon Road - Mayor Pro Tem

Hunt moved to approve Resolution 2024-033.  The motion was seconded by Council Member
Huffman and approved unanimously.  (Resolution 2024-033 is herein incorporated by reference into the 

minutes.)

4. Administrative Reports
A. Town Manager

i. Electric vehicle rebate – Manager Tolbert reported the Town requested the full $20,000
rebate ($5,000/port) for the two EV charging stations (equaling four ports) at Shallowford
Square. Since the Town’s spaces are part of handicap accessible spaces and are labeled “EV
Optional,” the state requested the signage to be removed or new spaces allocated for EV
parking for reimbursement. Staff worked with the state whereby the parking can remain as
is and the Town qualify for a slightly different rebate of $16,000 ($4,000/port).

ii. Public Works building purchase agreement execution – A purchase agreement in the amount
of $700,000 for the building adjacent to Town Hall, former US Post Office, with a 90-day

Attachment #2



review period has been signed. The agreement specifies the seller must provide evidence 
that the US Postal Service lease agreement has been terminated. Closing is scheduled for 
120 days from the agreement date.  

iii. Planning Director position – A conditional offer of employment has been extended to Lynn
Cochran for the Planning Director position. Mr. Cochran currently works for Rockingham
County and previously worked with the Piedmont Triad Regional Council. Upon successful
completion of screening requirements, Mr. Cochran will begin on August 5.

B. Clerk
i. Town offices closed – July 4

ii. The Neon Queen – July 13, 7:15 PM
iii. Gump Fiction – July 20, 7 PM
iv. Chicago Rewired – August 3, 7 PM
v. National Night Out – August 6, 6-8 PM

vi. Blood Drive – August 7, 1-5 PM, MAWCC
vii. CPR Class – August 10, 8 AM-12 PM, MAWCC

C. Public Works Director
i. Request for Qualifications – Lake Marblehead Dam – Two request for qualifications were

received. Staff is reviewing the proposal from Grimes Engineering for design and
development at a cost of approximately $30,000. In addition, the Town would have to pay
all permitting costs. Staff hopes to have the agreement on the agenda next week for Council
consideration. As the project progresses, the Town will keep the Willow Run neighborhood
apprised by communications via the MSD, homeowner’s association, flyers, etc.

5. Tentative Agenda Items for Regular Meeting on July 11, 2024

6. For the Good of the Order

7. Adjournment – Council Member Huffman moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:36 PM.  The motion
was seconded by Council Member Long and approved unanimously.

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor  

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



Lewisville Town Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
July 11, 2024 – 6:00 PM 

Lewisville Town Hall Council Chambers 
6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:00 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, and Council

Members Ivan Huffman, Monte Long, Julie Puckett, Ken Sadler and Jane Welch.  Also attending
were Town Manager Stacy Tolbert, Town Clerk Dora Moore, and Town Attorney Elliot Fus. Mayor
Pro Tem Melissa Hunt was absent.

B. Invocation – Council Member Monte Long
C. Pledge of Allegiance – Connor Lewis, Boy Scout Troop #752
D. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Long moved to approve the agenda as amended. The

motion was seconded by Council Member Huffman and approved unanimously.

2. Consent Agenda
A. Resolution 2024-032– Financial statements for the eleven months ended May 31, 2024
B. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – June 6, 2024
C. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – June 6, 2024
D. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – June 13, 2024

Council Member Sadler moved to approve the consent agenda items.  The motion was seconded by 
Council Member Puckett and approved unanimously.  (Resolution 2024-032 is herein incorporated by reference 

into the minutes.) 

3. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
A. Presentations

i. Monthly report – Sergeant Stringer shared recent call information. He encouraged residents
to lock their vehicles noting that most crimes are of convenience. If residents will be out of
town for an extended period, they were encouraged to call Town Hall or the Sheriff’s Office
to request security checks by the Town’s officers.

4. Public Forum – None

Attachment #3



5. New Business
A. Resolution 2024-034 – Final Design/Permitting phase and contractor selection phase for Lake

Marblehead Dam repairs - $35,000 – Manager Tolbert reported the Town received two responses
to the Request for Qualifications regarding repairs to Lake Marblehead Dam. Grimes Engineering
was the most qualified. Staff requested Council approve a contract with Grimes Engineering Inc.
for final design, permitting and contractor selection related to the Lake Marblehead Dam repairs
in an amount not exceed $35,000. Council Member Welch moved to approve the consent agenda
items.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Long and approved unanimously.  (Resolution 

2024-034 is herein incorporated by reference into the minutes.)

6. Administrative Reports
A. Upcoming events and closings

i. The Neon Queen – July 13, 7:15 PM
ii. Gump Fiction – July 20, 7 PM

iii. Chicago Rewired – August 3, 7 PM
iv. National Night Out – August 6, 6-8 PM
v. Blood Drive – August 7, 1-5 PM, MAWCC

vi. CPR Class – August 10, 8 AM-12 PM, MAWCC
a. This class is full. A waiting list is being compiled for the next class to be held November 1,

4-8 PM.
B. Approvals at the Briefing and Action Meeting on July 3, 2024

i. Resolution 2024-033 – Piedmont Natural Gas easement for Great Wagon Road

7. For the Good of the Order
A. Public comments – None
B. Council comments

i. Council Member Welch inquired about the traffic mitigation policy. It was noted that
proposed revisions were discussed at the briefing and an updated policy will be presented to
Council in August for their approval.

ii. The new Gateway sign is in and once lighting is finished, the project will be complete.

8. Adjournment – Council Member Huffman moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:16 PM. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Puckett and approved unanimously.

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: PRESENTATION 

SUBJECT: CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN 
FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR THE ANNUAL 
COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

PREPARED BY: PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: 8/1/2024 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The program for the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting was established by 

the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada in 1945 to encourage and 

assist state and local governments to go beyond the minimum reporting requirements of generally 

accepted accounting principles, and to prepare annual comprehensive financial reports that evidence the 

spirit of transparency and full disclosure, and then to recognize individual governments that succeed in 

achieving that goal.  

The goal of the program is not to assess the financial health of participating governments, but rather to 

ensure that users of their financial statements have the information they need to do so themselves. 

Reports submitted to the program are reviewed by selected members of the professional staff of the 

GFOA (Government Finance Officers Association) and the Special Review Committee (SRC), which 

comprises individuals with expertise in public sector financial reporting and includes financial statement 

preparers, independent auditors, academics, and other finance professionals. 

Attachment #4



I:\TOWN COUNCIL\AGENDAS\2024 Agendas\08-2024 Agendas\08-01-2024 Briefing agenda\Staff Report-ACFR June 30 2023.docx 

We did enter our Annual Comprehensive Financial Report into the program for the fiscal year ended June 

30, 2023 and I am pleased to report that we have been awarded the certificate. 

 

This is the 19th year that the Town has been awarded this honor. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION :    

       

No action required. 
 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Award package from the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and 
Canada. 













ORDINANCE 2024-025 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 16 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE FOR 

PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council adopted Ordinance 2007006 enacting a code of ordinances which 
revised, amended, restated, codified and compiled existing ordinances on March 8, 2007 with the 
understanding that chapters will need to be updated; and, 

WHEREAS, changes in the status of Town facilities necessitate amendments to the Parks, Recreation and 
Cultural Development policies; and, 

WHEREAS, Town Code Chapter 16 is being updated to address facility use exemptions as indicated in the 
attached redlined version. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that Chapter 16 Article 2-14 of 
the Lewisville Town Code is amended as noted. It is the intent of the Lewisville Town Council that the 
provisions of this ordinance shall be made a part of the Town of Lewisville Town Code; the sections of this 
ordinance may be re-numbered or re-lettered; and, the word ‘ordinance’ may be changed to ‘section’, 
‘article’, ‘chapter’ or other appropriate designation to accomplish such intention as needed. 

Adopted and enacted this the 8th day of August 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #5



TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 
6510 SHALLOWFORD ROAD 
PO BOX 547  336-945-1022
LEWISVILLE, NC 27023  townclerk@lewisvillenc.net 

FACILITY USE EXEMPTION REQUEST APPLICATION 

Please complete the information below.  If guidance is needed or you have questions, please contact Town Clerk Dora 
Moore at 336-945-1022 or townclerk@lewisvillenc.net.  Completed applications can be mailed, dropped off, or 
emailed to the Town of Lewisville.  

Organization Name:  ___________________________________________________________________ 
Contact Person:  ______________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address: ______________________________________________________________________ 

    _____________________________________________________________________ 
Phone Number:  ___________________  Email Address:  _____________________________________ 
Web Address:  ________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Is this a one-time request? ____________________________________________________________
a. If so, what is the date(s)? __________________________________________________________

2. Is this request for recurring dates? ______________________________________________________
a. If so, what are the dates and frequency? ______________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

3. What facility are you requesting:
___ G. Galloway Building ____Shallowford Square____ Jack Warren Park
___Mary Alice Warren Center

For the G. Galloway Building and Mary Alice Warren Center, what room(s) are you requesting: _______
__________________________________________________________________________________

4. What is the purpose of the request? ____________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________

5. Organizations serving the residents of the Town of Lewisville are defined as those with a 501(c)(3)
designation; is a group which regularly comes together for purposes of promoting, providing or
supporting services to the Town of Lewisville or its residents, and is one which is described in one or
more of the following (please check all that apply):

_____Uses a location within Lewisville’s corporate limits for its primary service place;
_____Has an office in Lewisville;
_____Has a majority of Lewisville residents in its service population;
_____Conducts a majority of its activities in Lewisville;
_____Focuses a significant program in the town;

mailto:townclerk@lewisvillenc.net


6. Describe how your organization’s mission and service impacts the Town of Lewisville community and
how it aligns with the mission and services of the Town of Lewisville. ___________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________

7. Describe the individuals and/or groups of residents that are served by your organization.
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________

8. How many years has your organization been providing its current service?  _____________________

9. Date of organization’s formation._______________________________________________________

10. If this request is approved for anything other than a one-time use, the organization will be required
to submit an activity summary to townclerk@lewisvillenc.net by January 31 of each year for the prior
calendar year. The report must contain the following: 1) organization’s background; 2) organization’s
accomplishments for the calendar year ending; 3) organization’s community engagement for the
calendar year ending; 4) certificate of insurance (must be sent directly to the Town by insurance
carrier); 5) IRS documentation; 6) list of current and presiding officers; and, 7) upcoming activities.

CHECKLIST OF DOCUMENTS FOR SUBMITTAL 
_____Completed application 
_____List of current members and the presiding officer of your organization including names and titles 
_____IRS Status Documentation, if applicable to your organization 
_____Certificate of insurance  
_____Additional information you would like to be considered regarding your organization’s request 

Signature and Indemnity 
The Organization agrees to protect, defend, indemnify, and save harmless the Town, its officers, agents, 
servants, and employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims, demands, 
damages, costs, expenses, and attorney’s fees resulting from any and all willful or negligent acts or 
omission of the Organization, its officers, agents, servants, and employees when utilizing Town facilities. 

By signing this application for request of exemption, I understand and agree to the above statement.  I 
have also read and understand the Facility Use Exemption Policy. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorizing Official    Title          Date 

If you need guidance completing this application, please contact Town Clerk Dora Moore at 336-945-1022 or 
townclerk@lewisvillenc.net. 

mailto:townclerk@lewisvillenc.net


STAFF USE ONLY 

Received by:  _________________________________________   Date:  ____________________________________ 

Staff Recommendation: __________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Council Approval:      YES _______   NO  _______     Date of Council Action:  ________________________________ 

Notes (if applicable):____________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 



§ 16-14   FACILITY USE EXEMPTION POLICY.

A. Purpose.  To establish uniform guidelines for use of town facilities to the benefit of the town, its
residents and the operating staff.

B. Basic policy. The Town of Lewisville desires that community recreational facilities be used for the
benefit of its residents, the enjoyment of family-oriented activities, and the enrichment of the town's
culture.

C. Non-discrimination policy. These facilities are available to all persons without discrimination on the
basis of race, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability.

D. User fees.  User fees are established annually at the time the annual budget is adopted by the Town
Council.

E. User fee exemptions.  Organizations may be exempted from the payment of user fees and deposits as
approved by the Town Council. The exemption shall be in the form of a Town Council ordinance and shall
be included in the list of exempted organizations listed elsewhere in this policy. Organizations not listed
in the Exemption Policy must pay all fees.

1. Organizations located in the Town of Lewisville that are defined by the Internal Revenue Code as
§ 501(c)(3) and § 501(c)(8) desiring recurring use may request to be exempted from user fees and
deposits by submitting a request for exemption to the Town Council through the Town Manager or
his or her designee. Requests for exemption shall be considered at the next regularly scheduled
meeting of the Town Council.

2. Organizations serving the residents of the Town of Lewisville as defined below may request to be
exempted from user fees and deposits by submitting a request for exemption to the Town Council
through the Town Manager or his or her designee. Requests for exemption shall be considered at the
next regularly scheduled meeting of the Town Council.

An organization that meets one of the following may be approved by Council: 
a. regularly comes together for the purpose of promoting, providing or supporting services to the

Town of Lewisville or its residents;
b. uses a location within the Town of Lewisville’s for its primary service place;
c. has an office in the Town of Lewisville;
d. has a majority of Town of Lewisville residents in its service population;
e. conducts a majority of its activities in the Town of Lewisville; or
f. focus a significant program in the Town of Lewisville

3. Organizations grandfathered by the Town Council (Lewisville Garden Clubs and Homeowner
Associations), non-profit organizations located in the Town of Lewisville that are defined by the
Internal Revenue Code as § 501(c)(3) and § 501(c)(8), and government organizations located in the
Town of Lewisville are exempt from the payment of user fees and deposits at Shallowford Square, G.
Galloway Reynolds Community Center and Jack Warren Park.  User fees for exempted users at the
Mary Alice Warren Community Center are outlined in § 16-18(F).  Cleaning and damage fees are not
exempt. If the facility is left unclean or damaged, the organization will be assessed a cost.



4. National or regional organizations located in the Town of Lewisville associated with health, human
services or educational issues involving public schools may use a town facility for an event once yearly
for the purpose of fund raising and the event shall be exempt from user fees and deposits. These
organizations are not exempt from cleaning and damage fees. If the facility is left unclean or damaged,
the organization will be assessed a cost.

F. Contracts.  All users of town facilities are required to execute the town’s standard rental
application/agreement prior to their use of a facility. The agreement includes an indemnity holding the
town harmless from any and all liability caused by the user’s negligence during their use of the facility.
Some groups may be required to provide proof of liability insurance as determined, on a case by case
basis, by staff. No sub-contracting is allowed.

G. Reservations.  All users are required to reserve the use of town facilities through the Town Hall
scheduling office. Reservations are to be approved by the Town Manager or his or her designated
representative. Reservations are requested no later than 2 weeks in advance of the required usage.
Exceptions may be granted by the Town Manager or his or her designee. Reservations made by an
organization must name a responsible party.

H. Recurring use.
1. Groups requiring recurring uses may submit a request to the scheduling office (Town Hall Office
Manager/Events Coordinator) stating the need for a recurring reservation and 3 choices of meeting
days and times. The Town Manager or designee may approve recurring requests after considering the
impact on the previously approved uses and future potential needs. Recurring uses may be approved
for up to 1 year and may be renewed annually.

2. The regular request and approval cycle is as follows:

Requests submitted/received June or November 

Recurring use schedule approved July or December 

Recurring use schedule effective August 1 through July 31 or January 1 through December 31 

3. Out of cycle requests may be submitted at any time, however other pre-approved uses will not be
altered to accommodate the out of cycle requests.

I. Cancellations.  Non-use of dates by recurring users are to be reported to the scheduling office as early
as possible so that the date will be available to other users.

J. Terms of use.
1. Exempted users follow the same rules for renters/users for each facility. All Shallowford Square,

G. Galloway Reynolds Community Center, Jack Warren Park, and Mary Alice Warren Community
Center rules apply. (See § 16-12, § 16-13, § 16-17, and § 16-18).

2. Exemptions requested by organizations, of which the Town of Lewisville is a member,

may be approved by the Town Manager or his/her designee.  Such exemptions shall be

for one-time events and not for recurring use of one or more of the Town's facilities.

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-717#JD_16-12
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-752#JD_16-13
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-4118#JD_16-17
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/lewisville/latest/lewisville_nc/0-0-0-5809#JD_16-18


3. Exempted organizations (for regular meetings and/or activities):
a. Lewisville Civic Club.
b. Winston-Salem/Forsyth County Schools (serving Lewisville; limited to 4/year/school)

Lewisville Elementary School, Lewisville Middle School, Reagan High School, Vienna
Elementary School, West Forsyth High School

c. Boy Scouts of America (local units sponsored by local organizations)
d. Girl Scouts of America (local units sponsored by local organizations)
e. Lewisville Garden Clubs
f. Lewisville Historical Society
g. Lewisville Area Arts Council (LAAC)
h. Lewisville Branch Library (cooperative agreement with the Forsyth County Library System)
i. American Legion
j. Homeowner Association (once yearly meetings)
k. Vienna Civic Club
l. Shepherd's Center
m. Rotary Club of Western Forsyth County (events only)
n. Forsyth Home Educators (limited to 4 activities/year, no classes)
o. Shallow Ford Foundation
p. The American Red Cross (blood drives only)
q. Lewisville-Clemmons Chamber of Commerce LEADS (weekly meeting at G Galloway Reynolds)

4. Exempt users are required to provide a certificate of insurance naming the town as an additional
insured unless the organization falls under the umbrella of a national charitable organization
recognized by the Internal Revenue Service under §  501(c)(3) or § 501(c)(8) of the Internal
Revenue Code or are grandfathered from the original list.



RESOLUTION 2024-036 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

APPROVING AMENDED RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC CONTROL POLICY 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves the 
Residential Traffic Control Policy as attached hereto.  

Adopted this the 8th day of August 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

___________________________ 

Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #6



1 

TOWN OF LEWISVILLE: RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC CONTROL 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Town of Lewisville wishes to have a procedure whereby its' residents can petition the Town to 
incorporate traffic calming devices and systems in order to alleviate speeding, excessive traffic volume, 
dangerous intersections or other conditions that are of a public safety nature. 

Residents who live on or near local town-controlled roads may perceive a danger to children playing, 
vehicle traffic, crime or hazards to walkers, joggers and bicycle riders.  Such concerns can lead 
neighborhoods to organize in an effort to convince elected officials to take action to alleviate these 
situations. 

The purpose of this document is to present ways in which residents can find solutions to residential traffic 
problems as approved by the Lewisville Town Council.  Consideration is given to a variety of residential 
traffic concerns and to the characteristics of these concerns on a case-by-case basis.  Each situation is 
reviewed with respect to the available traffic control measures that have been, or could be, found 
effective to alleviate the neighborhood traffic concern. 

The following outlines these guidelines and procedures, which can be used to develop the optimum 
solution or solutions to each particular situation.  There are many factors taken into consideration when 
reviewing residential traffic concerns, to determine the most feasible traffic control measure.  These 
factors include; the surrounding roadway network, resident access, speeds and/or volume of traffic, 
accident history, neighborhood response and budget considerations. 

Note: Public health and safety concerns are always the overriding consideration when installing or 
removing traffic control devices. 

What is Traffic Calming? 

Traffic calming is a programmatic response to inappropriate speeds or volumes on residential streets. 

Purpose: 

The purpose of this Traffic Calming Policy is to provide guidance to the request, evaluation, approval, and 
application/installation of traffic calming measures such as chicanes, curb extensions, speed humps, 
speed tables, speed cushions (speed lumps), and median islands.    The Town's Traffic Calming Policy 
was developed to guide town staff and to inform residents on the process for implementing traffic calming 
in residential areas. The policy is intended to address traffic issues not commonly addressed in the Manual 
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), although the MUTCD will be used for traffic engineering 
reference. 

This Policy addresses residential local streets and residential collector streets. 



2 

Definitions: 

Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT): The actual traffic volume passing a point in both directions on an 
average day (24-hours) and measured during a period of less than one year. 

Chicane: Chicanes are concrete islands that offset traffic, and create a horizontal diversion of traffic used 
to reduce the speed of vehicular traffic on local streets. Often, they are combined with curb extensions to 
exaggerate the vehicle movements. 

Curb Extension:  Curb extensions alternatively called chokers or bulb-outs, extend the sidewalk or curb 
line out into the parking lane, which reduces the effective street width and creates a pinch point along 
the street. They can be created by bringing both curbs in, or by more dramatically widening one side at a 
midblock location. 

85th Percentile Speed: The 85th percentile speed is the speed exceeded by the fastest 15% of vehicles. 

Local Residential Street:  A local residential street is one that connects individual driveways to the 
roadway network.  Often these streets contain subdivision type characteristics, contain cul-de-sacs, and 
are unstriped with curb and gutter.   

Local Residential Collector:  A residential collector street is one that connects individual driveways and 
local residential streets to connector roadways.  Often these streets are striped, contain sidewalks, have 
a good alignment, and are of higher speed than local residential streets.   

MUTCD:  Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.  This is a nationally published standard that 
governs the use of all public street signs and pavement markings.   

NCDOT Maintained Street: A street that is maintained by the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation.  The Town cannot approve any Traffic Calming Devices on these streets. 

Posted Speed Limit:  The speed limit that is established by ordinance and posted on a street based on 
design criteria such as vertical and horizontal sight distances. 

Public Safety Technical Review Committee (PSTRC):  Hereinafter referred to as “the committee.”  A 
committee comprised of the Town Manager, Public Works Director, Public Works staff member, 
Community Policing Sergeant or his/her designee, Lewisville Fire Chief or his/her designee and the Vienna 
Fire Chief or his/her designee.  The committee shall initiate traffic studies, review data and give 
recommendations based on collected information. 

Raised Median:  Medians are raised islands that separate opposing streams of traffic and limit turning 
movements.   They are typically placed in the center of a roadway, and are separated from the travel 
lanes by a curb. 

Speed Bump:  A speed bump is an abrupt bump in a travel way (usually in parking lots), 3-4 inches high 
and 1-3 feet in length.  These devices are not allowed on Town Maintained Streets and not addressed in 
this Policy. 



3 

Speed Cushion:  A series of smaller humps (2 or 3, depending on street width) across a street design to 
slow normal vehicular traffic, but with breaks in the pattern as to allow for the passage of emergency 
vehicles with a wider wheelbase without hitting a hump.  These are sometimes called speed lumps.

Speed Hump:  A traffic calming device consisting of a raised hump in the roadway, generally 3 inches 
high and 12 feet wide, stretching across the entire roadway. 

Speed Table:  A speed table is a term used to describe a very long and broad speed hump, or a 
flat-topped speed hump, where sometimes a pedestrian crossing is provided in the flat portion of the 
speed table.   

Town Maintained Street: A street that is currently on the Town's list of streets which it maintains. 

Traffic Calming Measure:  Measures, such as chicanes, curb extensions, speed humps, speed cushions, 
or raised medians.  Intended to reduce the speed of the motorist and/or prevent or decrease 
neighborhood cut-through traffic. 

Street Criteria: 

In order to be considered for traffic calming measures, the following criteria should be met. Town Staff 
and/or the PSTRC may waive these thresholds for streets with a documented traffic problem.   

 The Street must be a public street, owned and maintained by the Town.

 The Street shall be classified as a local residential or collector street.

 Arterials, thoroughfares, NCDOT maintained, or private roads will not be considered for traffic
calming measures by the Town.

 The posted speed limit in the vicinity of the traffic calming device shall be 25 mph or less.

 The Street must not exceed 36 feet wide from curb to curb.

 The Street must not be more than two travel lanes wide (two lanes with a common left turn
would not qualify).

 The grade of the street shall not exceed 8% for vertical traffic calming measures within 200 feet
of the traffic calming device.

 The street must be at least one thousand (1,000) feet in length.

 The street must have at least 400 AADT and no more than 5,000 AADT.

 The speed of at least 15% of traffic must exceed posted speed limit by 10 mph.

 The Street shall have adequate horizontal and vertical sight distances as determined by the Public
Works Director or his/her designee.

Initial Steps: 

Before the Town decides on installing a physical traffic calming device, consideration should be given to 
low costs non-physical treatments. Non-physical measures are generally techniques that do not alter the 
physical path of travel. Non-Physical measures also normally do not require significant construction or 
alteration of the roadway.  These measures typically require low cost materials such as line striping or 
signing.  Examples of non-physical treatments could include: 



4 

Increased Speed Enforcement Radar Trailers 
Additional or Oversized Signage Pavement Marking Legends 
High Visibility Crosswalks  On-Street Parking 
Streetscaping   Colored Pavements 
Intermittent Centerline Striping Indented Edgelines 
Painted Medians or Islands Rumble Strips or Stripes 
Flashing Beacons 

Upon evaluation of these non-physical techniques, the Town may still decide to implement physical traffic 
calming devices. 

General Information 

1. What Roads are Covered in this Program?  The control measures provided in this
document are specifically designed for neighborhood roads and streets that come under
the control of the Town of Lewisville.  Roads and streets, which are classified as State
controlled or private, are not covered by this document.

2. Defining the Traffic Concern Upon receiving a request about traffic concerns on a
residential street, the Town Manager will direct staff to perform an investigation to
determine if the location meets the street criteria as determined by this policy.  Based
on findings from the initial investigation, additional traffic studies may be scheduled.
The purpose of these additional studies is to determine if the traffic concern is related to
speeding or volume and to quantify the severity of the traffic concern.  These studies
will indicate whether the traffic concern qualifies for traffic control measures.

3. Standard Procedures for Implementation of Traffic Control Measures

a. STEP I:  Initiation:  Traffic Control Measures can be requested by any of the
following methods:
i. A written request from the Board of the Neighborhood Homeowners

Association acting for the neighborhood or a minimum of five signatures
from the owners of five separate properties in the neighborhood will be
required before studies will be initiated.

ii. Staff Field Reviews.
iii. Request by the PSTRC.

b. STEP II:  Committee Review/Town Staff Review/Traffic Engineering Analysis -
Classification:

i. The PSTRC will review the concern(s) with the neighborhood group,
homeowner association, or individuals initiating the request to assure that
the scope and details of the concern are clearly identified.  A review may



5 

include any or all of the following, depending on the scope of the concern: 
(1) Traffic conditions at the location
(2) Existing traffic signs and pavement markings
(3) Motorist travel patterns
(4) Effect of the roadway system in the vicinity
(5) Traffic or roadway plans for the vicinity and contributing roadway

system
(6) Time of day, day of week relationship
(7) Apparent causes of the concern
(8) History of the location
(9) Determination of roadway classification (local, collector, or

arterial)
(10) Emergency access concerns
(11) Other considerations

c. STEP III: Traffic Study/Data Collection and PSTRC Recommendation:

i. A traffic study will be conducted to obtain any of the following information:
(1) Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT)
(2) Average speed of the top 15% of traffic
(3) Vehicle speed check
(4) Vehicle turning movement counts
(5) Origination/Destination study
(6) Pedestrian counts
(7) Accident report summary
(8) Collision diagram studies

ii. The Town Staff shall analyze traffic data, field information and other
available information generated by the traffic study pertaining to the
particular area of concern in determining appropriate traffic control
measures for recommendation to the committee.  Should the staff
determine that there are other potentially impacted local roads or streets
in the area, additional traffic studies on those roads or streets may be
conducted.  As a result of the traffic studies, the PSTRC shall determine
applicable measures to be taken provided that a "no further action"
decision is not made by the appropriate authority (staff, committee, Town
Council).

d. STEP V: Public Safety Technical Review Committee Recommendation and 
Canvass

i. When traffic control measures are proposed, the Committee's
recommendation will be stated on the canvass form.  The canvass form



6 

will then be distributed by the contact entity for signatures of property 
owners in the affected areas. 

ii. Temporary traffic control measures may be recommended at the
discretion of the Committee.  The objective of such an installation in a
residential community would be to test the effectiveness and demonstrate
the benefit of the traffic control measure.  The use of temporary devices
also may be advantageous when budget constraints delay the installation
of the permanent device.

iii. A canvass form to obtain neighborhood consensus for the recommended
control measure will be issued by the Committee to the persons or
homeowners association initiating the request.  The contact person will
receive a map highlighting the area to be canvassed.  The area map will
depict the residential property that is adjacent to or directly affected by
any changes to the road in question.  The Town Staff will determine the
area of affected residents to be canvassed.  Any expansion of the area to
be petitioned other than the subject travel route will be determined by the
Public Safety Technical Review Committee and the Town Staff.

iv. The contact person is required to obtain signatures of 70 percent of all
households in the affected area for or against consideration of traffic
control measures.  Each affected household shall be counted as one vote,
regardless of the number of separate properties owned.  In case of
multiple owners, only one vote shall be counted for that property.  A
minimum of 65 percent of the households within the affected area must
be in favor of the proposed traffic control measures before the PSTRC will
forward a request with a recommendation for approval.  A simple
majority of the Town Council is required for implementation of residential
traffic control measures.  All vacant property within the affected area
should be listed on the canvass form as vacant by the contact person.  A
sufficient number of non-resident owners must be contacted if the
minimum petition threshold cannot be met because of an excessive
amount of vacant properties.

Example: Affected Area  = 26 lots 
Less: Vacant Lots = 2 lots 
Less: Half of double lot owners = 4 lots 
Number of households = 20 
70 percent canvas required  = 14 
65 percent favorable required = 13 

v. The contact person or homeowners association has 90 days to return



7 

completed canvass forms. Canvass forms not received within the 
90-day period will be deemed null and no further action will be taken.
Prior to the expiration of the initial 90-day period, a one-time extension of
the 90 days will be granted by the Public Safety Technical Review
Committee.  However, in no case will canvass forms be accepted later
than 180 days from the beginning of the initial signature period.  Positive
identification may be required at the time of signature of the canvass
forms.  Signatures are final and may not be added or removed from a
canvass forms once the canvass forms have been received by Town Staff.

vi. If a location fails to achieve the necessary majority within the signature
period, the location shall not be considered for a period of three years from
the date the signature period expires unless conditions change
significantly.

e. STEP VI: Town Council Meeting:  Upon receipt of a canvass form with the
required minimum percentage of affirmative signatures, the Public Safety
Technical Review Committee's recommendation will be scheduled for Town
Council action at a regularly scheduled Town Council meeting.

f. STEP VI:  Notification:  Notification shall be given to the property owners in the
affected area.  Notification shall in the form of a door hanger or letter and shall
include information such as the control measure being installed, estimated time
frame of installation and contact information of town staff.

4. Emergency Procedures

a. The Town of Lewisville may, at it's option, install traffic control measures in
emergency situations as recommended by the Public Safety Technical Review
Committee, the Sheriff’s Department, the Department of Transportation or other
agency or as supported by traffic studies.

b. Recommendation by the Sheriff's Department or other agency as an emergency
situation shall be in writing, and shall state that the imminent health and safety of
the public are at risk.  Emergency situations typically exist where bodily injury or
severe property damage has occurred as a result of speed or volume on a street,
which qualifies for consideration of Residential Traffic Control Measures.  The
recommendation must describe the nature of the emergency and its direct
relation to an affected area's traffic speed, or volume concern.  This
recommendation must be signed by the Sheriff or his/her designated
representative or a Department Head.



8 

5. Removal of Speed and Volume Traffic Control Measures

a. A petition for the removal of traffic control measures may be accepted if it alleges
a public safety hazard or provided that the following conditions are met:

i. The traffic control measure to be removed must be in place for a minimum
of a three-year period.

ii. The owners of five separate properties in the neighborhood must sign a
request for a removal petition.

iii. The new petition must include the same affected area as the original
petition.

iv. Approval of 65 percent of the property owners in the original affected area
is required for the Public Safety Technical Review Committee to
recommend approval of the requested removal.

v. Subsequent steps shall be the same as the current procedure to install
traffic mediation devices.

b. If a location fails to achieve the necessary petition majority within the signature
period, the location shall not be reconsidered for a period of three years from the
date the signature period expires unless conditions change significantly.



ORDINANCE 2024-012 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 
AMENDING THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE’S ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE UNIFIED 

DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE AND OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 

2065 GLENN FERRY COURT (L-109) 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL as follows: 

Section 1.  The Town of Lewisville Zoning Ordinance (Section B 6-2) of the Lewisville Unified 
Development Ordinances and the official zoning maps of the Town of Lewisville and 
Forsyth County, North Carolina are hereby amended by changing from RS-30 Forsyth 
County jurisdiction to RS-30 Lewisville jurisdiction for the following described 
property as:   

PIN 5887-32-3982 – 2065 Glenn Ferry Court, Pfafftown, NC 27040 

Also known as ‘Tract A’ from Plat 62-108 as recorded with the Forsyth County Register of 
Deeds 

1.67 acres +/-, Tract A 

Section 2.   This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its date of adoption. 

Adopted and effective this the 13th day of June 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council with a vote 

of ______. 

___________________________ 

ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #7



TownClerk
Highlight

TownClerk
Highlight

TownClerk
Highlight

TownClerk
Highlight



ORDINANCE 2024-013 OF THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE 
EXTEND THE TOWN OF LEWISVILLE CORPORATE LIMITS TO INCLUDE 

2065 GLENN FERRY COURT 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville has been petitioned under NCGS 160A-31 to annex the area 
described below; and,  

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council has by resolution directed the Town Clerk to investigate the 
sufficiency of the petition requesting annexation of property known as 2065 Glenn Ferry Court into 
the Town of Lewisville; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public hearing on the 
question of annexation was held at the Lewisville Town Hall, 6510 Shallowford Road, at 6 PM on 
Thursday, June 13, 2024 after due notice by the Winston-Salem Journal on Saturday, June 1, 2024;  

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of NCGS 
160A-31.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL that: 

Section 1.  By virtue of the authority granted by NCGS 160A-31, the following described territory 
is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Lewisville as of June 13, 2024: 

2065 Glenn Ferry Court, Pfafftown, NC 27040 
PIN 5887-32-3982  
Also known as ‘Tract A’ Plat 62-108 as recorded with the Forsyth County Register of 

Deeds 
1.67 acres +/-, Tract A 

Section 2.   Upon and after June 13, 2024, the above described territory shall be subject to all 
debts, laws, ordinance and regulations in force in the Town of Lewisville and shall be 
entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the of the Town of 
Lewisville.  Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according the NCGS 
160A-58.10.   

Section 3.   The Mayor of the Town of Lewisville shall cause to be recorded in the office of the 
Forsyth County Register of Deeds and the office of the North Carolina Secretary of 
State an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 above, 
together with a duly certified copy of the ordinance.  Such map shall also be delivered 
to the Forsyth County Board of Elections as required by NCGS 163-288.1.    

Adopted this the 13th day of June 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

Attachment #8



 

 

 

Amended this the 8th day of August 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

          

___________________________ 

ATTEST:       Mike Horn, Mayor 

 

____________________________ 

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



TownClerk
Highlight

TownClerk
Highlight

TownClerk
Highlight

TownClerk
Highlight









ORDINANCE 2024-026 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING TOWN CODE CHAPTER 13-1 

THE LEWISVILLE BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE CHARTER 

WHEREAS, the Town Council established the Community Beautification Committee by resolution on 
October 22, 1991; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL amends the charter as follows 
and updates Town Code Chapter 13-1: 

1. NAME OF COMMITTEE: The Community Beautification Committee shall now be titled the
Lewisville Beautification Committee referred to herein as the Committee.

2. TYPE OF COMMITTEE: The Committee shall be an advisory committee to the Town Council.

3. MISSION: Report on methods and concepts to improve the general appearance and ambiance of
the Town of Lewisville.

4. DEPARTMENT FUNDING:

a. The Committee shall coordinate an annual budget for the Beautification Committee with
the Town Manager by February 28 of each year.

b. Expenditures must follow the town’s financial procedures.

5. MEMBERSHIP:

a. The Committee shall be comprised of eight (8) members.

b. Members are appointed by the Town Council. Individuals interested in serving on the
Committee should submit a completed application form to the Town Clerk requesting
appointment. The Town Clerk forwards information to Council.

c. Members serve without compensation.

d. Only one person per household/family shall serve on the Committee.

6. TERMS OF APPOINTMENT

a. Appointments shall be made by the Town Council in March, following municipal elections.
Terms are two years commencing April 1 and expiring on March 31. Terms are renewable
without limitation to the number of consecutive terms.

b. Members who wish to resign their appointment shall submit their resignation in writing
to the Town Clerk. Vacancies on the Committee shall be filled for the unexpired term by

Attachment #9



ORDINANCE 2024-026 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING TOWN CODE CHAPTER 13-1 

THE LEWISVILLE BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE CHARTER 
 
 

 

Town Council.  
 
c. The Committee shall have a meetings attendance policy such that a member failing to 

attend three (3) consecutive, regularly scheduled Committee meetings without 
notification to the Chair or Town Clerk, shall have their membership subject to review and 
possible replacement by the Town Council. 

 
d. Committee members who wish to resign their position shall submit any such request to 

the Town Clerk. 
 
7. COMMITTEE STRUCTURE 
 

a. Chair: The committee membership shall select from among themselves a chair. 
 

i. The Chair shall serve for 2 years with eligibility of reelection. 
ii. The Chair shall be selected at the next scheduled committee meeting April 1 or 

later, following March appointments.  
 

b. Vice-Chair: The Committee membership shall select from among themselves a vice-chair. 
 

i. The Vice Chair shall serve for 2 years with eligibility of reelection. 
ii. The Chair shall be selected at the next scheduled committee meeting April 1 or 

later, following March appointments.  
 

8.   PROJECTS: 
 

a. Projects may be assigned by the Town Council or suggested by the Committee; however, 
project implementation shall be subject to approval of the Town Council. 

 
9. MEETINGS 
 

a. The Committee shall establish its own regular meeting schedule. 
 
 

b. All Committee meetings are subject to the North Carolina Open Meetings Law. 
 

c. The Committee meetings schedule shall be provided to the Town Clerk who shall make 
all the necessary announcements and postings. 

 
d. Minutes of all meetings shall be maintained in accordance with the Public Records laws 

and regulations with approved Committee meeting minutes submitted to the Town Clerk 
for the appropriate filing, and posting. 

 
e. Five (5) members, one of which must be the Chair or Vice-Chair, constitute a quorum. 

 



ORDINANCE 2024-026 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING TOWN CODE CHAPTER 13-1 

THE LEWISVILLE BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE CHARTER 

10. REPORTS:

a. The Committee Chair shall submit a report of its activities and other important matters to
the Town Council upon request.

11. REQUESTS
a. All official requests should be in writing from the committee chair and must be presented

to the Town Manager.

Chartered October 22, 1991 
Amendment 1 December 1, 1994 
Amendment 2 December 12, 2002 
Amendment 3 December 11, 2003 
Amendment 4 June 8, 2006 
Amendment 5 October 9, 2008 
Amendment 6 October 9, 2014 
Amendment 7 February 12, 2015 
Amendment 8 Ordinance 2016007 - March 10, 2016 
Amendment 9 Ordinance 2018021 – March 8, 2018 

Adopted this the 8th day of August 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

____________________________ 
Mike Horn, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



ORDINANCE 2024-027 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING THE CHARTER OF TOWN CODE CHAPTER 13-4  

THE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

WHEREAS, resident participation in helping to determine the priorities and direction of the Town of 
Lewisville is a fundamental tenant of town government; and 

WHEREAS, to implement resident participation, the Town of Lewisville has established boards and committees 
to carry out specific duties, specified in their charters, to make recommendations to the Town Council; and 

WHEREAS, on March 2, 1995, the Lewisville Town Council established The Environmental Issues Committee, 

The Recycling Committee, The Environmental Education Committee, and The Special Environmental 
Projects Committee; and 

WHEREAS, these four committees were intended to be a coordinated environmental concerns effort led by 
The Environmental Issues Committee; and 

WHEREAS, from time to time it may be necessary for the Town Council to revise the purpose and scope of 
such charters; and 

WHEREAS, in 2001, the Lewisville Town Council rescinded the charters of the four afore mentioned 

committees and combined all into the Lewisville Recycling Committee who were charged with monitoring the 
Town’s curbside recycling program, coordinating recycling events, providing other recycling opportunities 

in the community and actively working with schools on recycling; and 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Town Council has again seen the need to revise the charter. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL amends the charter as follows 
and updates Chapter 13-4 of the Town Code: 

1. NAME OF COMMITTEE: The Environmental Conservation and Sustainability Committee referred
herein as the Committee.

2. TYPE OF COMMITTEE: The Committee shall be an advisory committee to the Town Council.

3. PURPOSE: To preserve, enhance and protect our environmental resources to produce a high
quality of life and a sustainable community model for the future.

4. MISSION:

a. To investigate, implement, publicize or assist recycling and sustainability opportunities in

the community.

b. To assist in the review of Town policies and practices to determine potential opportunities
for increased cost-effective sustainability in areas such as conservation, waste reduction,
recycling, energy efficiencies and alternatives.

c. To advise on ways to encourage environmental stewardship on existing or proposed
initiatives.

Attachment #10



ORDINANCE 2024-027 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING THE CHARTER OF TOWN CODE CHAPTER 13-4  

THE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

d. To identify potential resources, grants, and programs that can reinforce sustainability goals

within the town and community.

e. To propose, encourage, promote, and coordinate local recycling and sustainability

projects, events and initiatives.

f. To engage in public awareness and education with area schools, organizations, businesses

and residents to encourage environmental stewardship, recycling and ecological

practices.

g. To engage in special projects as specifically directed by Town Council.

5. DEPARTMENT FUNDING:

a. The Committee shall coordinate an annual budget for the Committee with the Town

Manager by February 28 for approval by Town Council.

b. Expenditures must follow the town’s financial procedures.

6. MEMBERSHIP:

a. The Committee shall consist of eight (8) members, each serving without compensation.

b. Members are appointed by the Town Council. Individuals interested in serving on the

Committee should submit a completed application form to the Town Clerk requesting
appointment. The Town Clerk forwards information to Council.

c. Members serve without compensation.

d. Only one person per household/family shall serve on the Committee.

7. TERMS OF APPOINTMENT

a. Appointments shall be made by the Town Council in March, following municipal elections.
Terms are two years commencing April 1 and expiring on March 31. Terms are renewable
without limitation to the number of consecutive terms.

b. Members who wish to resign their appointment shall submit their resignation in writing
to the Town Clerk. Vacancies on the Committee shall be filled for the unexpired term by
Town Council.

c. The Committee shall have a meetings attendance policy such that members failing to
attend three (3) consecutive regular Committee meetings, without notification to the

Chair or Town Clerk, shall have their membership subject to review and possible



ORDINANCE 2024-027 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING THE CHARTER OF TOWN CODE CHAPTER 13-4  

THE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

replacement by the Town Council. 

d. Committee members who wish to resign their position shall submit a resignation to the

Town Clerk.

8. COMMITTEE STRUCTURE

a. Chair: The committee membership shall select from among themselves a Chair.

i. The Chair shall serve for 2 years with eligibility for reelection.

ii. The Chair shall be selected at the next scheduled committee meeting April 1 o r
l a t e r  following March appointments.

b. Vice-Chair: The Committee membership shall select from among themselves a vice chair.

i. The Vice Chair shall serve for 2 years with eligibility for reelection.

ii. The Vice Chair shall be selected at the next scheduled committee meeting April 1

or later following March appointments.

9. PROJECTS: The Committee shall obtain project approval of the appropriate Department Director,

Town Manager, or Town Council depending on the project cost and the current budget and

expenditure authority of the appropriate town official.

10. MEETINGS:

a. The Committee shall establish its own regular meeting schedule.

b. All Committee meetings are subject to the North Carolina Open Meetings Law.

c. The Committee meeting schedule shall be provided to the Town Clerk who shall make all

the necessary announcements and postings.

d. Minutes of all meetings shall be maintained in accordance with the Public Records laws

and regulations with approved Committee meeting minutes submitted to the Town Clerk

for the appropriate filing and posting

e. Five (5) members, one of which must be the Chair or Vice-Chair, constitute a quorum.

11. REPORTS:

a. The Committee Chair shall submit a report of its activities and other important
matters to the Town Council upon request.

12. REQUESTS

a. All official requests should be in writing from the committee chair and must be



ORDINANCE 2024-027 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING THE CHARTER OF TOWN CODE CHAPTER 13-4  

THE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

presented to the Town Manager. 

Recycling Committee Chartered April 12, 2001 
AMENDMENTS - October 11, 2001; December 11, 2003; June 8, 2006; October 9, 2008; October 9, 2014; 
Ordinance 2015023 - February 12, 2015; Ordinance 2018017 - March 8, 2018; Ordinance 2021014 - March 
11, 2021 

Adopted this the 8th Day of August 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

ATTEST: ___________________________________ 
Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



ORDINANCE 2024-028 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 13-2 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE 

ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

WHEREAS, there is a desire to showcase public art within the Town of Lewisville; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council recognizes the value of resident inclusion. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL establishes a Public Art 
Advisory Committee. 

1. Committee Name – Public Art Advisory Committee (herein referred to as “Committee”).

2. Committee Type – The Committee will serve in an advisory role to Town Council.

3. Mission – The Committee may suggest and recommend actions pertaining to the acquisition, loan,
placement, maintenance, display, and/or disposal of the Town’s public artworks.  The Committee
shall consult with and advise Town staff and Town Council in matters affecting public art policies,
resources, and acquisitions related to the total Town public arts program.

4. Public Art Definition
a. Photography, paintings, sculptures, murals, pottery, ceramics, tapestry, fabric, and other

media.
b. Visually and physically accessible to community.
c. Indoor or outdoor.
d. Temporary or permanent.

5. Department Funding
a. The Committee shall coordinate an annual budget, if needed, with the Town Manager by

February 28 for approval by Town Council.
b. Expenditures must follow the Town’s financial procedures.

6. Membership
a. The Committee shall be comprised of seven (7) members, effective with 2025 appointments.

Five of the members should have an art background. Examples of art professionals include,
but are not limited to: visual arts, art nonprofit workers, design professionals, art educators,
architects, art collectors, artists, craftsperson, and other professions in visual arts. Two of the
members do not need an art background.

b. Members are appointed by Town Council. Residents interested in serving on the Committee
shall submit a Public Art Advisory Committee application form to the Town Clerk requesting
appointment.  The Town Clerk forwards information to Council.

c. Members serve without compensation.

Attachment #11



ORDINANCE 2024-028 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 13-2 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE 

ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

7. Terms of Appointment

a. Appointments shall be made by the Town Council in March. Terms are two years
commencing April 1 and expiring on March 31. Terms are renewable without
limitation to the number of consecutive terms.

b. Effective with 2025 appointments, terms shall be staggered. Four members (three artists and
one non-artist) will be appointed to a two-year term and three members (two artists and one
non-artist) will be appointed to a three-year term. Upon term expiration, all members will be
appointed to two-year terms.

c. Members who wish to resign their appointment shall submit their resignation to the Town
Clerk who shall provide to Town Council for their acceptance. Vacancies on the Committee
shall be filled for the unexpired term by Town Council.

8. Committee Structure
a. Chair

i. The Committee shall select from among themselves a Chair.
ii. The Chair shall serve for one (1) year with eligibility of reelection.

iii. The Chair shall be selected at the next scheduled committee meeting April 1 or later,
following March appointments.

b. Vice Chair
i. The Committee shall select from among themselves a Vice Chair.

ii. The Vice Chair shall serve for one (1) year with eligibility of reelection.
iii. The Vice Chair shall be selected at the next scheduled committee meeting April 1 or later,

following March appointments.

9. Meetings
a. The Committee shall establish its own regular meeting schedule. Schedule to be provided to

the Town Clerk for appropriate filing and posting.
b. The Committee shall meet as needed.
c. All Committee meetings are subject to the North Carolina Open Meetings Law.
d. Minutes of all meetings shall be maintained in accordance with public records laws and

regulations with approved Committee meeting minutes submitted to the Town Clerk for
appropriate filing and posting.

e. Four (4) members, one of which must be the Chair or Vice Chair, constitute a quorum.
f. The Committee shall have a meeting attendance policy such that members failing to attend

three (3) consecutive regular Committee meetings, without notification to the Chair or Town
Clerk, shall have their membership subject to review and possible replacement by the Town
Council.

10. Reports – The Committee Chair shall submit a report of its activities and other important matters
to the Town Council upon request.



ORDINANCE 2024-028 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 13-2 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE 

ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

11. Requests – All official requests should be in writing from the Committee Chair and must be
presented to the Town Manager.

Adopted this the 8th day of August 2024. 

__________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



ORDINANCE 2024-029 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 16 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE 

PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE CHARTER 

WHEREAS, Town Code Chapter 16 is being updated to amend the Parks, Recreation and Cultural 
Development charter. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL amends the charter as follows 
and updates Town Code Chapter 16: 

§ 16-1 NAME OF COMMITTEE.
Lewisville Parks, Recreation and Cultural Development Committee, referred to herein as the Committee.

§ 16-2 TYPE OF COMMITTEE.
Advisory to the Town Council with defined authority as may be established by the Town Council.

§ 16-3 MISSION.
A. The Committee shall be responsible for preparing, presenting to the Town Council, and

maintaining a parks and recreation master plan, outlining the long and short range priorities for
the Town of Lewisville which reflect the recreational priorities of the residents of Lewisville.

B. The Committee shall advise on operating policies for Town Council consideration and approval.

§ 16-4 DEPARTMENT FUNDING.
The Committee shall coordinate an annual budget for the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Development
Committee with the Town Manager by February 28 for approval by Town Council. Expenditures must
follow the Town's financial procedures.

§ 16-5 MEMBERSHIP.
A. The Committee shall consist of 7 members, who shall be residents of the town, each serving

without compensation.
B. Applications for membership shall be forwarded to the Town Clerk upon public announcement of

Committee vacancies or anticipated vacancies.
C. Committee members shall be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the Council, each to serve

an unlimited number of 2-year terms.
D. Members who wish to resign shall submit a resignation to the Town Clerk.

§ 16-6 TERMS OF APPOINTMENT.

A. Appointments shall be made by the Town Council in March, following municipal elections. Terms
are two years commencing April 1 and expiring on March 31. Terms are renewable without
limitation to the number of consecutive terms.

B. Appointments to fill vacancies occurring on the Committee, other than by expiration of term, shall
be filled upon appointment by the Town Council for the unexpired term. The filling of vacancies
shall not require election of officers unless the vacancy was an officer position.

Attachment #12



 
ORDINANCE 2024-029 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 16 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN CODE 

PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE CHARTER 
 

 

C. The Committee shall have a meeting attendance policy such that members failing to attend 3 
consecutive Committee meetings, without the consent of the Chair or Town Clerk, shall have their 
membership subject to review and possible replacement by the Town Council.       

D. Any Committee member who wishes to resign his or her position shall submit any such request to 
the Town Clerk. 

 
§ 16-7 COMMITTEE STRUCTURE. 

A. Chair. The Committee membership shall select from among themselves a Chair. 
1. The Chair shall serve for two (2) years with eligibility for reelection. 
2. The Chair shall be selected at the first scheduled meeting after April 1 following March 

appointments.  
B. Vice-Chair. The Committee membership shall select from among themselves a Vice-Chair. 

1. The Vice-Chair shall serve for two (2) years with eligibility for reelection. 
2. The Vice-Chair shall be selected at the first scheduled meeting after April 1 following March 

appointments.  
 
§ 16-8 MEETINGS. 

A. The Committee shall establish its own regular meeting schedule. 
B. All Committee meetings are subject to the North Carolina Open Meetings Law. 
C. The Committee meeting schedule shall be provided to the Town Clerk who shall make all the 

necessary announcements and postings. 
D. Minutes of all meetings shall be maintained in accordance with the Public Records laws and 

regulations with approved Committee meeting minutes submitted to the Town Clerk for the 
appropriate filing and posting. 

E. Four members, one of which must be the Chair or Vice-Chair, constitute a quorum. 
 
§ 16-9 REPORTS. 
The Committee Chair shall submit a report of its activities and other important matters to the Town 
Council upon request. 
 
Adopted and effective this the 12th day of October 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 
 
 
 
             

______________________________ 
ATTEST:        Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 
 



ORDINANCE 2024-030 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
DISSOLVING THE PUBLIC SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Advisory Committee was established in 1996; and, 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Advisory Committee was formed to examine ideas and report on methods 
and concepts to improve citizens’ safety and well-being of our community; and, 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 160A-146 authorizes the Lewisville Town Council to create, 
consolidate, change and abolish Town volunteer boards and committees, and to organize the Town 
government in order to promote orderly and efficient administration of own affairs; and, 

WHEREAS, the committee has completed their work and the Lewisville Town Council believes the Public 
Safety Advisory Committee should be dissolved; and, 

WHEREAS, the Council expresses their appreciation to the committee members for their efforts and 
achievements since the formation of the committee.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Lewisville Town Council hereby dissolves the Public Safety 
Advisory Committee. 

Approved and effective this the 8th day of August 2024. 

________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

______________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #13



RESOLUTION 2023-054 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
FACILITY FEE EXEMPTION FOR LEWISVILLE-CLEMMONS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

WHEREAS, a Facility Use Exemption Policy for parks and recreation facilities is outlined in Town Code 
Chapter 16-14; and, 

WHEREAS, the Forsyth County Fire Historical Society, Inc. holds an annual fundraiser to preserve the 
history of all Forsyth County fire departments; and, 

WHEREAS, Forsyth County Fire Historical Society, Inc. has reserved multiple rooms at the Mary Alice 
Warren Community Center for their annual fundraiser on October 5, 2024.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL approves a one-time reduced 
rate for facility use at the Mary Alice Warren Community Center on October 5, 2024 per Town Code 
Chapter 16-14 for the Forsyth County Fire Historical Society, Inc. 

Adopted and effective this the 8th day of August 2024 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #14


	08-08-2024 Agenda
	01 - Res - June 30, 2024 Financials
	02 - 07-03-2024 TC Briefing Minutes
	03 - 07-11-2024 TC Meeting Minutes
	04 - ACFR June 30 2023
	Staff Report-ACFR June 30 2023
	ACFR 6-30-2024

	05 - 2024-025 - Ord - Facility Use Exemption Policy
	2024-025 - Facility Use Exemption Policy
	2024-025 Ord - Amending Town Code Chapter 16-18 MAWCC - Facility Use Exemption

	Application - Facility Use Exemption - Redlined June 2024

	06 - 2024-036 - Res - Traffic Mitigation Policy
	2024-036 - REs - Traffic Mitigation Policy
	2024-036 - Res - Traffic Mitigation Policy

	Residential Traffic Control Procedure - Aug 2024 - CLEAN

	07 - 2024-012 - Ord -  Rezoning - 2065 Glenn Ferry Court - AMENDED
	Plat 62-108
	08 - 2024-013 - Ord -  Amended - Annexation - 2065 Glenn Ferry Court
	Plat 62-108
	Deed 3711-1111
	09 - 2024-026 - Ord - LBC Charter
	10 - 2024-027 - Ord - ECSC Charter
	11 - 2024-029 - Ord - Public Art Charter
	12 - 2024-029 - Ord - Parks & Rec Charter
	13 - 2024-030 - Ord - Dissolving Public Safety Advisory Committee
	14 - 2024-037 - Res - Fo Co Fire Historical Society - One-time reduced user exemption



